
 

 

 

 
 

H:\Projects\1300113 - Mzimvubu Water Project\Public Participation\Meetings\Minutes\Public Meetings May 2014\Siqhungqwini\Mzimvubu dam 14.05.2014 (Siqhungqwini) Final Draft.docx        6/3/2014         10:24:43                           T05REV00 

DOCUMENT NO. REV  DATE PAGE 

1300113   2014-05-14 1 OF 3 
 

Mzimvubu Water Project Environmental Impact Assessment 
 Minutes of Public Meeting at Siqhungqwini Village 

 

Venue 
Siqhungqwini Junior 
Secondary School 

Date 14-05-2014 Time 10:15 

Facilitator Martin van Veelen 
Minutes prepared 
by 

Kim Dalhuijsen  

 

PRESENT 

Please see attendance register attached. 

 

Item Description 

1. Welcome 

 Dr Martin van Veelen thanked everyone for attending the meeting. The meeting was opened with a 

prayer and the National Anthem. Mr Ayanda Mtshizama assisted with translation to Xhosa for the 

duration of the meeting. Mr Menard Mugumo introduced the project team. 

2. Purpose of the Meeting 

 Dr van Veelen explained that the purpose of the meeting was to inform stakeholders about the 

Mzimvubu Water Project as well as the EIA process that is currently underway. The public meetings 

were to inform stakeholders of the identified key issues, to provide stakeholders the opportunity to raise 

additional issues or concerns that have not been identified in the Draft Scoping Report (DSR).  

3. Presentation: Project Description 

 Mr Mugumo presented on the following: 

 Project background and description; 

 Location (map) and statistics of the Ntabelanga and Laleni Dams; 

 Access roads to Ntabelanga and Laleni dam sites that will be upgraded; 

 Ntabelanga-Laleni Conjunctive Scheme; 

 Laleni Dam has been designed so as not to impact the existing N2; 

 The hydropower plant will generate up to 30 MW of base load power or 180 MW of peaking 

power; 

 Dam construction will be approximately three years; 

 Materials and basic methods needed for construction; 

 Aerial view of dam and associated works; 

 Construction of Gauging Weirs; 

 Primary and secondary bulk pipelines; and 

 Map of the proposed irrigation areas and relevant infrastructure. 

4. Questions for clarity on Project Description 

4.1 

 

 

 

4.2 

It was asked if the residents of the area would benefit from this project. Mr Mugumo stated that the 

residents would benefit as drinking water would be supplied to the community. He explained that the 

project would also generate jobs for the entire region, not just the community.  

 

It was asked, with regards to the extent of the dam basin, if any houses and irrigable land would be 

affected. It was stated that this would be discussed in the next presentation: Environmental Impact 

Assessment (EIA). 

5. Presentation: Environmental Impact Assessment 



 

 

 

 
 

H:\Projects\1300113 - Mzimvubu Water Project\Public Participation\Meetings\Minutes\Public Meetings May 2014\Siqhungqwini\Mzimvubu dam 14.05.2014 (Siqhungqwini) Final Draft.docx        6/3/2014         10:24:43                           T05REV00 

DOCUMENT NO. REV  DATE PAGE 

1300113   2014-05-14 2 OF 3 
 

Item Description 

 The main purpose of the Mzimvubu Water Project is to provide socio-economic upliftment. The project 

involves both positive and negative impacts. Potentially significant impacts have been identified and 

will be assessed in the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) phase.  

 

Mrs Terry Calmeyer presented on the following: 

 What is an EIA; 

 Purpose of the EIA and why it is needed; 

 The EIA process (description of each phase); 

 The Public Participation Process; 

 DSR comment period is from 9 May to 9 June 2014; 

 Documents are available from www.dwa.gov.za/mzimvubu; 

 Key issues identified, to date; 

o Plants and animals; 

o Rivers and wetlands; 

o Socio-economic impacts; and 

o Heritage impacts. 

 Way Forward, and 

 Conclusions.  

6. Discussion 

6.1 

 

 

 

 

6.2 

 

 

 

 

 

6.3 

 

 

 

 

6.4 

 

 

6.5 

 

 

 

Dr van Veelen asked if the local community knew about two plant species in the area; the Yellow Arum 

Lily and a small shrub that has medicinal properties believed to make you strong. Both plants are 

endangered and are protected. He stated that if the community knows of these plants the project team 

need to be informed in order to rescue the plants before construction. No one stated that they are 

aware of the plants. 

 

Mr Mtshizama from the Department of Environmental Affairs – Natural Resource Management - 

Working for Water explained that they are in the process of implementing the Catchment Management 

Plan for the Mzimvubu River Catchment. He stated that this initiative has hired/is hiring local people to 

assist with the clearing of alien invasive plant species as well as restoration of degraded lands. This will 

add more weight to the construction of the Ntabelanga- Laleni Dam scheme.  

 

Mr Sigenu from the community expressed his appreciation for the project. He stated that this project 

will benefit them, especially with the roads being upgraded. He added that the hydropower plant may 

also, at a later stage, help the community get electricity. He concluded that, as far as he is concerned 

the positive benefits seem to outnumber the negatives and this pleases the community. 

 

A member of the community encouraged the rest of the community to submit comments on the project 

because if they do not the project could be delayed whereas the community want the project to start as 

soon as possible. 

 

It was asked if, based on the studies done, there were any set measurements regarding the area that 

would become inundated so that people who may need to be relocated can prepare themselves to be 

moved. Mrs Calmeyer stated that the households, fields and fruit trees would be identified as part of 

the EIA, however, this study will only identify how this may be impacted and no negotiations with the 

occupier or the Chiefs would be done during the EIA. She stated that this would be undertaken just 

http://www.dwa.gov.za/mzimvubu


 

 

 

 
 

H:\Projects\1300113 - Mzimvubu Water Project\Public Participation\Meetings\Minutes\Public Meetings May 2014\Siqhungqwini\Mzimvubu dam 14.05.2014 (Siqhungqwini) Final Draft.docx        6/3/2014         10:24:43                           T05REV00 

DOCUMENT NO. REV  DATE PAGE 

1300113   2014-05-14 3 OF 3 
 

Item Description 

 

 

 

 

6.6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6.7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6.8 

 

 

 

 

 

6.9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6.10 

before the project is implemented and only then would the individuals affected be communicated with. 

Mrs Calmeyer stated specialists would be coming into the area to identify potentially impacted houses 

but this would only be recorded in order to be used for the future relocation of people. 

 

A community member expressed concern about the chemicals that would be used during construction 

and how this may affect the community, including livestock and grazing land. Mrs Calmeyer stated that, 

as part of the EIA an Environmental Management Programme (EMP) will be compiled which will state 

rules and methods that the Contractor must follow with regards to storage and spillage of chemicals. 

This is in order to reduce the impact on the surrounding land and people. In addition, during 

construction, water samples will be taken for testing to make sure that there is nothing harmful in the 

water. 

 

A member of the community stated that they appreciate the project and he asked if the young people 

would receive training for the construction of the dam in order for them to apply for jobs as part of this 

project. Dr van Veelen stated that the Contractor would be in control of this but that it has been noted 

and would be added as a recommendation to the DWA. Mr Mugumo stated that recruitment would be 

from the surrounding community and, during construction skills would be transferred. He added that 

there would be two skill groups needed; for the construction phase and then for the operational phase. 

This would need to be addressed with the relevant authorities such as the. Department of Agriculture 

for all farming training. 

 

Mr Sigenu asked how the naming of the project worked and why it was named Mzimvubu. Mr 

Mtshizama stated that three District Municipalities are impacted by this project, which does not include 

only one dam. The project was named after the Mzimvubu River Catchment, not after the District 

Municipalities. Mr Mugumo stated that the Mzimvubu Water Project is not limited to only these two 

dams. It is the project initiation phase and may include future projects within the Mzimvubu Catchment 

area. He explained that the individual dams would be named after construction. 

 

A community member asked about the project launch that happened on 11 April 2014 when the 

Ministers and the President came to the Eastern Cape. He asked why the sod turning was not done in 

the area where the dam wall is being constructed. Mr Mugumo explained that the condition of the 

existing roads make the dam  site inaccessible. He stated that once this project starts, the roads would 

be improved, making access easier and safer. The opening of the dam will therefore be done at the 

dam wall site. 

 

It was asked if the people within the community were considered to be allowed to rent their houses to 

the Contractors/construction workers during the construction of the dam. Dr van Veelen stated that this 

has been noted as a potential housing option. 

7. Next Meeting 

 Second round of meetings will be held in September 2014. 

8. Closure 

 The meeting ended with a prayer at 13h10. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTENDANCE REGISTER 













 

 

 

 
 

H:\Projects\1300113 - Mzimvubu Water Project\Public Participation\Meetings\Minutes\Public Meetings May 2014\Tsolo\Mzimvubu dam 15.05.2014 (Tsolo) Final Draft.docx        6/3/2014         10:28:16                           T05REV00 

DOCUMENT NO. REV  DATE PAGE 

1300113   2014-05-15 1 OF 3 
 

Mzimvubu Water Project Environmental Impact Assessment 
Minutes of the Public Meeting in Tsolo Town 

 

Venue Tsolo Town Hall Date 15-05-2014 Time 11:20 

Facilitator Martin van Veelen Minutes prepared by Kim Dalhuijsen  

 

PRESENT 

Please see attendance register attached. 

 

Item Description Action 

1. Welcome  

 Martin van Veelen opened the meeting and thanked all attendees. Mr Menard Mugumo 

introduced the project team, including the local facilitator for the area, Vuyisa Nomanqino. 

 

2. Purpose of the Meeting  

 Dr van Veelen explained that the purpose of the meeting was to inform stakeholders about the 

Mzimvubu Water Project as well as the EIA process that is currently underway. The public 

meetings were to inform stakeholders of the identified key issues, to provide stakeholders the 

opportunity to raise additional issues or concerns that have not been identified in the Draft 

Scoping Report (DSR).  

 

3. Presentation: Project Description  

 Mr Mugumo presented on the following: 

 Project background and description; 

 Location (map) and statistics of the Ntabelanga and Laleni Dams; 

 Access roads to Ntabelanga and Lalanei dam sites that will be upgraded; 

 Ntabelanga-Laleni Conjunctive Scheme; 

 Laleni Dam has been designed so as not to impact the existing N2; 

 The hydropower plant will generate up to 30 MW of base load power or 180 MW of 

peaking power; 

 Dam construction will be approximately three years; 

 Materials and basic methods needed for construction; 

 Aerial view of dam and associated works; 

 Construction of Gauging Weirs; 

 Primary and secondary bulk pipelines; and 

 Map of the proposed irrigation areas and relevant infrastructure. 

 

4. Presentation: Environmental Impact Assessment  

 The main purpose of the Mzimvubu Water Project is to provide socio-economic upliftment. The 

project involves both positive and negative impacts. Potentially significant impacts have been 

identified and will be assessed in the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) phase.  

 

Mrs Terry Calmeyer presented on the following: 

 What is an EIA; 

 Purpose of the EIA and why it is needed; 

 



 

 

 

 
 

H:\Projects\1300113 - Mzimvubu Water Project\Public Participation\Meetings\Minutes\Public Meetings May 2014\Tsolo\Mzimvubu dam 15.05.2014 (Tsolo) Final Draft.docx        6/3/2014         10:28:16                           T05REV00 

DOCUMENT NO. REV  DATE PAGE 

1300113   2014-05-15 2 OF 3 
 

Item Description Action 

 The EIA process (description of each phase); 

 The Public Participation Process; 

 DSR comment period is from 9 May to 9 June 2014; 

 Documents are available from www.dwa.gov.za/mzimvubu; 

 Key issues identified, to date; 

o Plants and animals; 

o Rivers and wetlands; 

o Socio-economic impacts; and 

o Heritage impacts. 

 Way Forward, and 

 Conclusions.  

5. Discussion  

5.1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.3 

 

 

 

 

5.4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.5 

 

Mrs Tsama (DEDEAT) stated that this project will affect the communities, people’s homesteads, 

grazing lands and agricultural fields. She asked what the plan was to compensate for this. Mrs 

Calmeyer stated that the policy of Governement is that the people that are affected should not 

be worse off than they are before the project commences. Part of the EIA process will be to 

compile a Relocation Action Plan which include a consultation with the Traditional Authorities 

and Municipalities regarding how best to deal with relocation. She stated that the directly 

impacted people will not be communicated with during the EIA phase, but a register will be 

compiled in order to identify what exactly will be impacted. The draft plan will be made available 

to the public as part of the draft EIA public comment phase. 

 

Mrs Silo (DEDEAT) stated that they work with the OR Tambo Municipality and they are aware of 

how the people complain about the grazing lands. She stated that this project is a very large 

project and that the newspapers used to advertise were not sufficient. She recommended that 

the Daily Dispatch be used for future advertisements. She stated that there are not many people 

in the area that will read the documents provided. She recommended that the project be 

announced via the communal radios to announce meeting dates. This was noted and will be 

further investigated. 

 

Mrs Silo stated that there is a protocol through the Traditional Affairs and stated that they should 

be informed to assist with informing the public. Mrs Calmeyer stated that this was done and that 

the Traditional Authorities were the ones who put ILISO in contact with the local facilitators and 

Chiefs who have assisted with planning the meetings. 

 

Mrs Silo stated that there are no permitted quarries or mining areas within OR Tambo 

Municipality. She asked what would be done about this. Mrs Calmeyer stated that all the quarry 

areas identified would be within the dam basin. She explained that they will be new quarries and 

borrow areas and an Environmental Management Programme is being compiled which will be 

submitted to the Department of Mineral Resources for approval. Mr Mugumo added that if there 

are insufficient materials availablein the dam basins they would be bought from the local 

suppliers. 

 

Mr Duma stated that he resides in Tsolo and can see that this project will have positive spin offs 

for the area. He stated that he looks forward to this project and that he is in favour of it. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

KD 

 

 

 

http://www.dwa.gov.za/mzimvubu


 

 

 

 
 

H:\Projects\1300113 - Mzimvubu Water Project\Public Participation\Meetings\Minutes\Public Meetings May 2014\Tsolo\Mzimvubu dam 15.05.2014 (Tsolo) Final Draft.docx        6/3/2014         10:28:16                           T05REV00 

DOCUMENT NO. REV  DATE PAGE 

1300113   2014-05-15 3 OF 3 
 

Item Description Action 

 

5.6 

 

Mrs Silo asked where hardcopies of the documents were available for the local people to 

review. Mrs Calmeyer stated that hard copies have been left at the following venues from 9 May 

2014 and are available until 9 June 2014 for comment: 

 Siqhungqwini Junior Secondary School; 

  Tsolo (Mhlontlo Local Municipality offices); 

  Qumbu (Mhlontlo Local Municipality offices); 

  Mthatha (Walter Sisulu University); and 

  East London Central Library. 

An additional hardcopy was left with Chief Mabantla who is the Chief for the ward where the 

Ntabelanga Dam will be constructed. 

6. Next Meeting  

 The second round of meetings will be held in September 2014.  

7. Closure  

 Mr Mugumo expressed his thanks to the people who attended the meeting. He explained that 

the public participation process is a crucial part of the EIA process. The meeting ended at 

12h35. 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTENDANCE REGISTER 







 

 

 

 
 

H:\Projects\1300113 - Mzimvubu Water Project\Public Participation\Meetings\Minutes\Public Meetings May 2014\Laleni\Mzimvubu dam 16.05.2014 (Laleni) Final Draft.docx        6/3/2014         10:35:41                           T05REV00 

DOCUMENT NO. REV  DATE PAGE 

1300113   2014-05-16 1 OF 3 
 

Mzimvubu Water Project Environmental Impact Assessment 
Minutes of the Public Meeting at Laleni Village 

 

Venue 
Laleni Junior 
Secondary School 

Date 16-05-2014 Time 10:15 

Facilitator Martin van Veelen Minutes prepared by Kim Dalhuijsen  

 

PRESENT 

Please see attendance register attached. 

 

Item Description 

1. Welcome 

 Dr Martin van Veelen opened the meeting. The Ward Councillor welcomed everyone to the meeting 

and stated his approval of the project and welcomed the project team. He introduced the Headman and 

previous Headman. 

 

Mr Menard Mugumo introduced the project team, including the local facilitator for the area, Vuyisa 

Nomanqino who translated the discussions to isiXhosa. 

2. Purpose of the Meeting 

 Dr van Veelen explained that the purpose of the meeting was to inform stakeholders about the 

Mzimvubu Water Project as well as the EIA process that is currently underway. The public meetings 

were to inform stakeholders of the identified key issues, to provide stakeholders the opportunity to raise 

additional issues or concerns that have not been identified in the Draft Scoping Report (DSR).  

3. Presentation: Project Description 

 Mr Mugumo presented on the following: 

 Project background and description; 

 Location (map) and statistics of the Ntabelanga and Laleni Dams; 

 Access roads to Ntabelanga and Lalanei dam sites that will be upgraded; 

 Ntabelanga-Laleni Conjunctive Scheme; 

 Laleni Dam has been designed so as not to impact the existing N2; 

 The hydropower plant will generate up to 30 MW of base load power or 180 MW of peaking 

power; 

 Dam construction will be approximately three years; 

 Materials and basic methods needed for construction; 

 Aerial view of dam and associated works; 

 Construction of Gauging Weirs; 

 Primary and secondary bulk pipelines; and 

 Map of the proposed irrigation areas and relevant infrastructure. 

4. Presentation: Environmental Impact Assessment 

 The main purpose of the Mzimvubu Water Project is to provide socio-economic upliftment. The project 

involves both positive and negative impacts. Potentially significant impacts have been identified and 

will be assessed in the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) phase.  

 

Mrs Terry Calmeyer presented on the following: 



 

 

 

 
 

H:\Projects\1300113 - Mzimvubu Water Project\Public Participation\Meetings\Minutes\Public Meetings May 2014\Laleni\Mzimvubu dam 16.05.2014 (Laleni) Final Draft.docx        6/3/2014         10:35:41                           T05REV00 

DOCUMENT NO. REV  DATE PAGE 

1300113   2014-05-16 2 OF 3 
 

Item Description 

 What is an EIA; 

 Purpose of the EIA and why it is needed; 

 The EIA process (description of each phase); 

 The Public Participation Process; 

 DSR comment period is from 9 May to 9 June 2014; 

 Documents are available from www.dwa.gov.za/mzimvubu; 

 Key issues identified, to date; 

o Plants and animals; 

o Rivers and wetlands; 

o Socio-economic impacts; and 

o Heritage impacts. 

 Way Forward, and 

 Conclusions.  

5. Discussion 

5.1 

 

 

 

 

 

5.2 

 

 

 

 

5.3 

 

 

 

5.4 

 

 

 

 

5.5 

 

 

 

 

5.6 

 

 

Dr van Veelen asked if the local community knew about two plant species in the area; the Yellow Arum 

Lily and a small shrub that has medicinal properties believed to make you strong. Both plants are 

endangered and are protected. He stated that if the community knows of these plants the project team 

need to be informed in order to rescue the plants before construction.  The community responded they 

have not seen these plants, however, the tree “Nkokolo” was identified as having strengthening 

medicinal properties.  

 

Mr Tshitshi stated that he is happy for this opportunity and that the project will be beneficial to the 

community, in terms of job creation as there is a high number of unemployed youth in the area. He 

requested that the dam be fenced off and closed on top. He thanked the community for attending the 

meeting. 

 

Mrs Lawana expressed concern about the access road to Laleni as it already has potholes. She asked 

what would be done about this road. Dr van Veelen stated that the road would be improved and the 

bridge would be made bigger. 

 

A community member stated that he is concerned about the site of the dam as this is used as a grazing 

area. He asked what compensation would be given to the people as they will lose this grazing land. 

Mrs Calmeyer responded that a Relocation Action Plan is being prepared as part of the EIA. All 

homesteads, crops and grazing land will be identified. This will then be discussed with the Headman 

and the Ward Councillor for negotiation so that no one is worse off after the project than they are now. 

 

Mr Fukutwa asked when the construction of the dam would start. Mr Mugumo responded that the 

Department of Water Affairs is planning to start construction before the end of 2014. This will be 

dependent on obtaining the environmental authorisation from the Department of Environmental Affairs. 

This authorisation is a legal requirement and needs to be obtained before construction can commence. 

 

Mr Ngxiti asked for clarity between permanent and temporary job creation. Mrs Calmeyer responded 

that jobs will be created during the construction of the dam and associated infrastructure, however, 

these will only be for the duration of construction. Once construction has finished then there will be 

other jobs related to operation of the dam and agriculture that would be permanent. Mr Mugumo stated 

http://www.dwa.gov.za/mzimvubu


 

 

 

 
 

H:\Projects\1300113 - Mzimvubu Water Project\Public Participation\Meetings\Minutes\Public Meetings May 2014\Laleni\Mzimvubu dam 16.05.2014 (Laleni) Final Draft.docx        6/3/2014         10:35:41                           T05REV00 

DOCUMENT NO. REV  DATE PAGE 

1300113   2014-05-16 3 OF 3 
 

Item Description 

 

 

 

 

5.7 

 

 

5.8 

 

 

 

 

5.9 

 

 

 

 

5.10 

 

5.11 

 

 

 

 

5.12 

 

that the Catchment Management Plan will also create additional employment for the community. Chris 

Motsilili added that there are meant to be community initiatives to provide training for agriculture to 

enable the community to become sustainable. 

 

Mrs Jamjam stated she is interested in agriculture and asked that they get fencing for the agricultural 

fields. 

 

Mrs Kasa asked for clarity on what areas would be irrigated. Dr van Veelen stated that this has not yet 

been determined. The studies will still be undertaken to determine what the best crops will be for 

irrigation and the areas will be determined from there. Councillor Dawedi stated that there are 

numerous departments that are role players in this project. He explained that there is an existing 

project in the ward that will assist with fencing ploughed land within Laleni. 

 

Mr Ngamlana requested assurance that this project would start on time. Mr Mugumo stated that there 

is commitment from Government to start this project early. The timing, however, will be dependent on 

when authorisation is obtained. He explained that if there are complex appeals lodged against the 

project then this may delay the authorisation. Mr Ngamlana appealed that Government should not 

disappoint the community by not fulfilling the commitment for this dam. 

 

Mr Ndyoki requested additional equipment such as tractors to help the people plant crops. 

 

Mrs Nomanqina stated she appreciates the information provided to them today and expressed her 

concern about the young children that will be endangered by the dam. There will be many dangers 

during construction as well as once the dam is operational, as it would be a large expanse of open 

water, posing a threat for potential drowning. 

 

Mr Nomanqina stated he is worried about the cold wind that will come off the dam. This will affect the 

people living close to the dam site. 

6. Next Meeting 

 Second round of meetings will be held in September 2014. 

7. Closure 

 Dr van Veelen thanked the community for their attendance. He explained that all comments received 

today would be taken into consideration during the upcoming investigations. The meeting ended at 

12h15. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTENDANCE REGISTER 














	Mzimvubu dam 14.05.2014 (Siqhungqwini) Final Draft.pdf
	ATTENDANCE REGISTER divider
	Siqhungqwini attendance register
	Mzimvubu dam 15.05.2014 (Tsolo) Final Draft and attendance register.pdf
	Mzimvubu dam 15.05.2014 (Tsolo) Final Draft.pdf
	ATTENDANCE REGISTER divider
	Tsolo attendance register

	Mzimvubu dam 16.05.2014 (Laleni) Final Draft and attendance register.pdf
	Mzimvubu dam 16.05.2014 (Laleni) Final Draft.pdf
	ATTENDANCE REGISTER divider
	Laleni attendance register


